
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  City Council Workshop & Meeting   
  July 15, 2019 

   Agenda 
 

                                                                                                                
 

5:30 P.M.  City Council Workshop 

A. Planning Board & City Council Joint Workshop – (30 Minutes)  

B. Environmental Performance Standards (Odors) Ordinance – Eric Cousens (20 minutes) 

C. Ag Committee Ordinance – Peter Crichton and Holly Lasagna (20 minutes) 

 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Young 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items - None  
 

II. Minutes 

• July 1, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 
 

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• Presentation - Auburn Suburban Girls U12 State Champs 

• Presentation & Discussion - Proposed Library Avenue Design (Eric Cousens & Zachary Lenhert) 

 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 

related to City business which is not on this agenda. Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per speaker. 
 

V. Unfinished Business  
 

1. Order 80-07012019 
Authorizing the issuance of Bonds for the Norway Savings Bank Arena. Second reading. 
Passage requires an affirmative vote of 5 Councilors. 
 

VI. New Business  
 

1. Order 85-07152019  
Authorizing the cancellation of the first regular City Council meeting of August (August 5, 2019). 
 

2. Order 86-07152016  

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Casting votes for members of the Androscoggin County Budget Committee.  

Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A., Sec 405(6)(A) – personnel matter. 
 

3. Ordinance 10-07152019 
Amending the sign ordinance for Official business directory signs. First reading. 
 

VII. Reports 
a.  Mayor’s Report  
b. City Councilors’ Reports   
c. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business which is not on this agenda. Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per speaker. 

 
IX. Executive Session  

A. Contract negotiations (Fire), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 405(6)(D). 

B. Contract negotiations (MSEA), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 405(6)(D). 

X. Adjournment 
 



 
  

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    July 15, 2019 
 
Author:  Peter Crichton, City Manager  
 

Subject: Joint Workshop between City Council and Planning Board 
 
Information: This will be an open discussion by the City Council and Planning Board on the presentations regarding the 
proposed Agriculture Committee Ordinance and the proposed Marijuana Odor Ordinance, in addition to other topics 
that members of the Council and Planning Board may wish to discuss.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: No fiscal impact.   
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: A good, healthy, respectful, and productive discussion.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This past year the City Council has started a practice of having representatives of city 
committees and boards as well as external organizations provide updates to the City Council and Mayor on their 
activities. Evan Cyr, Chair of the Planning Board, has addressed the City Council and Mayor earlier this year. This Joint 
Workshop is a continuation of that dialogue.  
 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation.                                                                                                       

                                                                                          Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  July 15, 2019   
 

Author:   Audrey Knight, City Planner 
 

Subject:   Proposed text amendments to Chapter 60, Article XIII Environmental Performance Standards.  
 

Information:  The proposed amendments are primarily to Sec.60-1038 Odors and pertain to detection, 

measurement and enforcement measures and methodology. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts:  Purchase of two (2) field olfactory meters ($ 2-4,000) for police & code enforcement 
officers 
 

 

Staff Recommended Action:  Discuss changes from last workshop on this item. Schedule for public hearing 1st 
and 2nd readings and approve proposed amendments. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History:   City Council considered a previous draft in workshop in May and a public 
hearing and passage of first reading occurred at the 5/20/2019 Council meeting, however it was not 
considered by the Planning Board until June.  The Planning Board took up the item at a Public Hearing on June 
11, 2019 and had many concerns and recommendations.  Staff amended the ordinance to address the 
concerns and specifications of the Planning Board by working with code enforcement officers and researching 
other jurisdictions.  A second Public Hearing was held at the Planning Board meeting on July 9, 2019 where the 
attached ordinance passed unanimously. Because substantial changes have been made from what was 
originally proposed, another workshop is being held on July 15, 2019, with another public hearing, first and 
second readings in August and September. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:                      
 

Attachments:    Planning Board Staff Report package for July 9, 2019 with proposed amendments. 
 

 
 



     ARTICLE XIII. - ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY  

Sec. 60-1034. - Purpose.  

The purpose of the standards in this article relating to smoke, noise, vibration, odors, air pollution 
and electrical disturbance of infrastructure is to ensure that no new development occurs which may have 
an environmental impact that could be detrimental to the city or property owners or that may have a direct 
impact to property caused by nuisances directly or indirectly associated with the above environmental 
issues. The standards provided in this article shall apply to all nonresidential uses in the city.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.6A)  

Sec.60-1035. – Applicability. 

No land use, facility, or activity shall be exempt from complying with the 
e n v i r o n m e n t a l  p e r f o r m a n c e  standards contained in this article, Chapter 60-
1035, Zoning, because of grandfathering or because of being an existing use, facility, or 
activity at the time the standards were enacted. The standards apply to all existing and future 
sources, land uses, facilities, and activities in the non-residential uses of the City, except as 
otherwise provided herein. 

 

Sec. 60-10365. - Smoke.  

(a)  For the purposes of determining the density of equivalent opacity of smoke, the Ringlemann Chart, 
as adopted and published by the United States Department of Interior, Bureau of Mines Information 
Circular 8333, May 1967, shall be used. The Ringlemann number referred to in this section refers to 
the number of the area of the Ringlemann Chart that coincides most nearly with the visual density of 
equivalent opacity of the emission of smoke observed. For example, a reading of Ringlemann No. 1 
indicates a 20 percent density of the smoke observed.  

(b)  All measurements shall be taken as close to the point emission of the smoke as reasonably 
possible.  

(c)  In all zones, no development may emit from a vent, stack, chimney or combustion process any 
smoke that exceeds a density or equivalent capacity of Ringlemann No. 1, except that an emission 
does not exceed a density or equivalent capacity of Ringlemann No. 2, is permissible for a duration 
of not more than four minutes during any eight-hour period if the source of such emission is not 
located within 250 feet of a residential district.  

(d)  In the industrial zone, no development use may emit from a vent, stack, chimney or combustion 
process any smoke that exceeds a density or equivalent capacity of Ringlemann No. 2, except that 
an emission that does not exceed a density or equivalent capacity of Ringlemann No. 3 is 
permissible for a duration not more than four minutes during any eight-hour period if the source of 
emission is not located within 500 feet of a residential district.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.6B) 

Sec. 60-10376. - Noise.  

(a)  A decibel is a measure of a unit of sound pressure. Since sound waves having the same decibel 
level sound louder or softer to the human ear depending upon the frequency of the sound wave in 
cycles per sound (i.e., whether the pitch of the sound is high or low) and A-weighted filter 

Formatted: Right:  0"



constructed in accordance with the specifications of the American National Standards Institute, which 
automatically takes account of the varying effect on the human ear of different pitches, shall be used 
on any sound level meter taking measurements required by this section. And accordingly, all 
measurements are expressed in dB(A) to reflect the use of this A-weighted filter.  

(b)  The standards established in the table set forth in subsection (c) of this section are expressed in 
terms of the equivalent sound level (Leq), which must be calculated by taking 100 instantaneous A-
weighted sound levels at then-second intervals and computing the Leq.  

(c)  Except as provided in subsection (d) of this section, the following table establishes the maximum 
permissible noise levels for nonresidential uses. Measurements shall be taken at the boundary line 
of the lot where the nonresidential use is located, and, as indicated, the maximum permissible noise 
levels vary according to the zoning of the lot adjacent to the lot on which the use is located.  

 Zoning of Adjacent Lot  

 Residential  General Business  Light Industrial  

Maximum sound level  50  60  70  

  

(d)  Impact noises are sounds that occur intermittently rather than continuously. Impact noises 
generated by sources that do not operate more than one minute in any one-hour period are 
permissible up to a level of ten dB(A) in excess of the figures listed in the table, except that this 
higher level of permissible noise shall not apply from 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. when the adjacent lot is 
zoned residential. The impact noise shall be measured using the fast response of the sound level 
meter.  

(e)  Noise resulting from temporary construction activity that occurs between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. 
shall be exempt from the requirements of this section.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.6C) 

Sec. 60-10387. - Vibration.  

(a)  No development in any zone may generate any ground-transmitted vibration that is perceptible to 
the human sense of touch measured at:  

(1)  The outside boundary of the immediate space occupied by the enterprise generating the 
vibration if the enterprise is one of several located on a lot; or  

(2)  The lot line if the enterprise generating the vibration is the only enterprise located on a lot.  

(b)  No development in any zone may generate any ground-transmitted vibration in excess of the limits 
set forth in subsection (e) of this section. Vibration shall be measured at any adjacent lot line or 
residential district line as indicated in the table set forth in subsection (e) of this section.  

(c)  The instrument used to measure vibrations shall be a three-component measuring system capable 
of simultaneous measurement of vibration in three mutually perpendicular directions.  

(d)  The vibration maximums set forth in subsection (e) of this section are stated in terms of particle 
velocity, which may be measured directly with suitable instrumentation or computed on the basis of 
displacement and frequency. When computed, the following formula shall be used:  

PV = 6.28 F × D  



Where: ;b0;[W1] PV = Particle velocity, inches-per-second  

F = Vibration frequency, cycles-per-second  

D = Single amplitude displacement of the vibration, inches  

The maximum velocity shall be the vector sum of the three components recorded.  

(e)  Table of maximum ground-transmitted vibration:  

Particle velocity, inches-per-second  

Adjacent Lot Line  Residential District  

0.020  0.02  

  

(f)  The values stated in subsection (e) of this section may be multiplied by two for impact vibrations, i .e., 
discrete vibration pulsations not exceeding one second in duration and having a pause of at least 
one second between pulses.  

(g)  Vibrations resulting from temporary construction activity that occurs between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 
p.m. shall be exempt from the requirements of this section.  

(h)  Vibration resulting from the railroads passing through the city shall be exempt from these standards.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.6D) 

Sec. 60-10398. - Odors.  

(a)  For purposes of this section, the term "odor threshold" is defined as the minimum concentration in 
air of a gas, vapor, or particulate matter than can be detected by the abutters of the property in 
question..  

(1b)  No development in any non-residential usezone may generate any odor that reaches the 
odor threshold, measured at the lot line of the enterprise generating the odor .of a “Dilution-to-
Threshold”, D/T, of Seven (7) or less using a field olfactometer.   
  

(2)     Whether or not an odor emission interferes with the reasonable and comfortable use 

and enjoyment of a property shall be measured against the objective standards of a 
reasonable person of normal sensitivity. The use of a field olfactometer meter may be 
used for documentation, verification and enforcement as needed.  A measurement 
reading of seven (7) D/T or less shall be maintained at the property line. 
  
(3)    Odor observation shall be undertaken to arrive at a determination that an 
objectionable odor exists at the property line, or beyond the property line if a public 
space where people live, work or assemble is impacted. 
 

(4)    If complaints are received regarding farming operations, and the farm is using Best 
Management Practices as outlined in state and federal standards, the Right-to-Farm, 
MRSA, Title 7, Chapter 6, Statute 153, shall prevail. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.31"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38", First line:  0", Space

After:  0 pt

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", Space Before: 

0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38", Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt, Character scale:

100%, Not Expanded by / Condensed by 

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38"



 
b)     Administration and enforcement. The Code Enforcement Officer, and/or their official designee, of 

the City of Auburn shall administer and enforce this article.    The CEO will follow Sec.2-639 in 
determining time limits for corrective actions based on the level of risk or nuisance posed by the 
issue. 

 
 (1)   Upon receiving three (3) different complaints the (CEO) shall investigate the issue. If the CEO 

detects and/or the operator indicates that management provisions installed within the facility are 
not being followed, the CEO shall provide verbal notice of violation with instructions to comply with 
the standards within 10 business days, and to inform the officer of efforts or completion within that 
time. The officer may use electronic meters or devises to measure and quantify the issue for 
comparative and/or enforcement purposes. 

  
(2)  If complaints persist and/or the issues are not resolved after the  ten-day period described 
above, a written notice of violation, as specified under Chapter 2, Article VIII (Citation System of 

Code Enforcement), with the requirement that the owner/operator prepare a Mitigation Plan that 
meets the requirements of this ordinance, along with a time table for implementation within 30-
days.  If the installed mitigations fail to bring the facility into compliance, a specialist may be 
required to design a remedy, and the City may use contracted staff or peer review escrow fees to 
review the Mitigation Plan. 
 
(3)  If the operator has not submitted the required report or made efforts to comply within 45-days 
the CEO shall issue a second written notice of violation and assess additional fines as specified 
under Chapter 2, Article VIII.  
 
(4)   If the operator has not submitted the required report -or if the operator has not provided 
substantial evidence of attempted compliance  ofwithin 60-days of the first written notice of 
violation, the City Manager may consider  temporarily suspending the business license (if a 
business license was issued), under the provisions of Chapter 14, Article 11,(Business License), in 
addition to issuing further citations and penalties under Chapter 2, Article VIII.  If the issue, 
complaints, or matter remains unresolved or addressed by the owner/operator within 90-days of 
the written notice of violation, the City Manager may ask the City Council to permanently revoke 

the business license, and/or further penalties and citations will be issued until the matter is 
resolved. e.   

 

Sec. 60-104039. - Air pollution.  

(a)  Any development that emits an air contaminant as defined by the state department of environmental 
protection shall comply with applicable state standards concerning air pollution.  

(b)  No zoning or special exception permit may be issued with respect to any new development covered 
by subsection (a) of this section until the state department of environmental protection has certified 
to the city that the appropriate state permits have been received by the developer, or that the 
developer will be eligible to receive such permits and that the development is otherwise in 
compliance with applicable air pollution laws.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.6F) 

Sec. 60-10410. - Electrical disturbance or interference.  

No use may:  

(1)  Create any electrical disturbance that adversely affects any operations or equipment other than 
those of the creator of such disturbance; or  

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", Space Before: 

0 pt

Formatted: Justified

Formatted ...

Formatted: Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.38", Space

Before:  0 pt,  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: 

0.38", Left +  0.5", Left + Not at  0.64"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", Space Before: 

0 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.01 li, Tab stops:  0.38",

Left + Not at  0.64"

Formatted ...

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.31"



(2)  Otherwise cause, create or contribute to the interference with electronic signals (including 
television and radio broadcasting transmissions) to the extent that the operation of any 
equipment not owned by the creator of such disturbance is adversely affected.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.6G) 

Secs. 60-10421—60-1063. -–Authorization, eEnforcement and severabilityReserved.  

a) Authorization. This article is adopted pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001 and the City's Home 

Rule Powers as provided for in Article VII-A of the Maine Constitution and Title 30-A M.R.S.A. 

§§ 2101 through 2109 and in accordance with the authority of the City to seek judicial 

remedies in order to protect the inhabitants of the City, the City as a municipal corporation, and 

individual residents of the City as provided for by the laws of the State of Maine, 

including, but not limited to 17 M.R.S.A. §§ 2702, 2705 and 2706; 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2002 and at 

common law. 

 b)    Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 
this article is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions. 

 

—Sec. 60- 1043- 60-1063. Reserved

DIVISION 2. - PHOSPHORUS CONTROL  

Sec. 60-1064. - Purpose.  

(a)  The purpose of this division is to provide protection against additional phosphorus export to Taylor 
Pond and Lake Auburn from new land uses and changes in existing land uses by ensuring that 
development within the watersheds does not generate more phosphorus than the water bodies can 
handle and by eliminating or reducing existing sources of phosphorus.  

(b)  Phosphorus, a nutrient, stimulates algal growth, the main cause of water quality decline. The 
primary source of new and increasing phosphorus loading in the state lakes is land development: 
residential, commercial and industrial.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.7A) 

Sec. 60-1065. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Acceptable increase in lake phosphorus concentration (C) is based upon water quality and the city's 
selected level of protection. For Taylor Pond the number is 0.75; for Lake Auburn the number is 0.5.  

Direct watershed means any land area which contributes storm-water runoff by either surface or 
subsurface flow to Taylor Pond or Lake Auburn without such runoff first passing through an upstream 
lake.  

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.31", Hanging:  0.32"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.31", Hanging:  0.32",  No

bullets or numbering

Formatted: Highlight



Future area to be developed (D) means an estimate of the acreage in the city's share of the direct 
watersheds that will be developed during the planning period of 50 years. For Taylor Pond, the estimated 
future developed acreage is 715.3; for Lake Auburn, the estimated future developed acreage is 1,180.0.  

Lake Auburn means the Lake Auburn Watershed regulated by this chapter is all land areas within the 
direct watershed of Lake Auburn as defined on the attached map entitled Lake Auburn Watershed Map.  

Per-acre phosphorus allocation (P) means the acceptable increase of phosphorus export per acre in 
the watershed as determined by solving the following equation (P) = (FC)/(D). For Taylor Pond, the 
phosphorus allocation is 0.036; for Lake Auburn, the phosphorus allocation is 0.047.  

Phosphorus export coefficient (F) means the amount of phosphorus export from the watershed each 
year that will produce a one ppb increase in the lake's phosphorus concentration. For Taylor Pond, the 
phosphorus coefficient is 35.26 lbs/ppb/year; for Lake Auburn, the phosphorus coefficient is 109.9 
lbs/ppb/year.  

Taylor Pond means the Taylor Pond Watershed regulated by this chapter is all land areas within the 
direct watershed of Taylor Pond as defined on the attached map entitled "Taylor Pond Watershed Map".  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.7B) 

Sec. 60-1066. - Applicability.  

This division shall apply to all land areas within the direct watersheds of Taylor Pond and Lake 
Auburn. The following land uses shall be required to obtain a phosphorus control permit and conform to 
the standards contained in this division:  

(1)  Any new building or structure with more than 575 square feet of ground floor area.  

(2)  Any expansions or series of expansions of ground floor area of any existing building which 
increases the area of the ground floor by more than 30 percent of that which exists at the time 
of adoption of the ordinance from which this division is derived.  

(3)  Any earth moving, brush and tree cutting which impacts 10,000 square feet or more whether 
accomplished as a single activity or as a series of activities beginning on the date of adoption of 
the ordinance from which this division is derived shall only meet the criteria contained in section 
60-1069.  

(4)  Road or driveway construction and reconstruction and parking area construction which affects 
more than 1,500 square feet of land area whether accomplished as a single activ ity or as a 
series of activities beginning on the date of adoption of the ordinance from which this division is 
derived shall only meet the criteria contained in section 60-1069.  

(5)  All projects for which special exception, site plan and subdivision review is required.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.7C) 

Sec. 60-1067. - Exemptions.  

This division shall not apply to the following:  

(1)  Changes of use within an existing structure where no ground floor expansion and/or road, 
driveway and parking area expansion is planned.  

(2)  Timber management or harvesting operations conducted according to a management plan 
prepared and supervised by a registered forester (unless required by division 4 of article XI I of 
this chapter) or the city water district.  

(3)  Agricultural uses conducted according to a soil and water conservation plan approved by the 
Androscoggin County Soil and Water Conservation District.  



(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.7D) 

Sec. 60-1068. - Best management practices.  

Agriculture, silviculture, mining, chemical use and storage and waste disposal activities should be 
conducted in accordance with the best management practices (BMPs) as recommended by the 
department of environmental protection, the state soil and water conservation commission, the 
cooperative extension service or other appropriate public service agency. New roads and the 
reconstruction of existing roads, driveways, drainage diversions, ditches and roadside buffers should be 
designed for the worst storm conditions in accordance with the best management practices (BMPs) 
recommended by the department of environmental protection, the state soil and water conservation 
commission, the cooperative extension service or other appropriate public service agency.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.7E) 

Sec. 60-1069. - Erosion and sedimentation controls.  

A comprehensive erosion and sedimentation control plan, including a proposed program for the 
maintenance and periodic inspection of all control facilities which will remain after the project is completed 
and a designation of the responsible party, shall be submitted as follows:  

(1)  Taylor Pond Watershed. A plan designed in accordance with the applicable sections of chapter 
8 of the DEP Phosphorous Control and Lake Watersheds: A Technical Guide to Evaluating New 
Development, the latest edition of the Maine Erosion and sediment Control Handbook and all 
building and environmental protection requirements of this Code.  

(2)  Lake Auburn Watershed. A plan designed in accordance with the applicable sections of 
chapter 8 of the DEP Phosphorous Control and Lake Watersheds: A Technical Guide to 
Evaluating New Development, the latest edition of the Maine Erosion and Sediment Control 
Handbook, and all building and environmental protection requirements of this Code and criteria 
of the city water district or commission.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.7F) 

Sec. 60-1070. - Submission requirements.  

All projects subject to review under the provisions of this division shall submit a phosphorus control 
plan and maintenance provisions meeting the standards set forth in the manual Phosphorus Control and 
Lake Watersheds A Technical Guide to Evaluating New Development (Maine DEP et al., September 
1989, with the Simple Review Method revised in May 1990).  

(1)  Plan submission. Plans shall be submitted and processed in accordance with article XVI of this 
chapter. In addition to the requirements for submission under this article, the following 
instructions shall be provided:  

a.  A long-term maintenance plan for all phosphorus control measures including provisions for 
inspection and repair, designation of responsible parties, contractual obligations and 
proposed deed restrictions.  

b.  Hydrologic soil class of all areas to be cleared or where clearing will be permitted, with the 
area indicated in square feet of each lot using the appropriate method as described in the 
phosphorus control manual.  

c.  All calculations and worksheets in the format of those contained in the phosphorus control 
manual and detailed construction specifications and diagrams for all control measures.  



d.  A comprehensive erosion and sedimentation control plan, designed in accordance with the 
Maine Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook for Construction: Best Management 
Practices, March 1991, and and all building and environmental protection requirements of 
this Code.  

(2)  Review method.  

a.  All projects shall use the standard review method and shall conform to the Phosphorus 
Allocation standard set forth in this division including the following: Expansions of four lot 
subdivisions which were previously approved using the simple review method.  

b.  Projects meeting the following criteria may employ the simple review method:  

1.  Minor subdivisions with four or fewer lots provided that these developments contain 
less than 200 feet of new or upgraded roads and/or all driveways serving residential 
uses are less than 150 feet in length.  

2.  Activity which includes less than 200 feet of new or upgraded road construction.  

(3)  Commercial and industrial development and expansions. Commercial and industrial 
development and expansions of commercial and industrial developments and the expansion of 
multifamily dwelling units, which involve less than 15,000 square feet of disturbed area. All other 
subdivisions including expansions of previously approved four-lot subdivisions which were 
reviewed using the simple review method and all other projects shall utilize the standard review 
method.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 5.7G) 

Secs. 60-1071—60-1093. - Reserved.  











City of Auburn, Maine 

 Office of Planning & Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

To:   Auburn Planning Board 
 
From:   Audrey Knight, City Planner    
   
 
RE: Text Amendment to Article XIII, Environmental Performance Standards, Division 1, 

Sec.60-1038. Odors. Revised June 26, 2019 

 

Date:  July 9, 2019 
  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
I. BACKGROUND- The purpose of the Environmental Performance Standards section of the Zoning 
Ordinance is to ensure that new development has limited impact on its neighbors in contributing to 
noise, air quality, vibration, electrical disruptions and odors. The Odors section of this Article is being 
expanded to address assessment, definition, and enforcement of the ordinance.  While the update to 
this section of the environmental standards was triggered by the development of the Marijuana 
Ordinance, it is applicable and relevant to all non-residential development projects in the city. 
 
II. DISCUSSION - At the June 11, 2019 Planning Board Public Hearing of this item extensive 
discussion was held regarding several items of concern.  Staff was asked to conduct research regarding 
other jurisdictions successful administration and handling of this issue, and to develop an alternate draft 
or alternatives for the Board to consider.   Items of concern to the Planning Board could be summarized 
as:   

a. nuisance complaints to eliminate a business; 
b. the need for measurable, quantifiable metrics; 
c. violation and compliance should not to be left to subjective opinions; and, 
d. the further need for an “observable or measured standard” to determine compliance. 

 
Staff reviewed legal articles and Denver and Colorado, Sonoma and Mendocino Counties, Portland, ME, 
and Michigan ordinances and enforcement mechanisms and procedures.  Each jurisdiction operates 
under different industry issues, enforcement air quality bodies, and urban densities, which in turn bring 
about different approaches.  Common themes are to establish thresholds based on science and to use 
the now common field olfactory measuring devices to establish baselines and thresholds of tolerance.  
All use odor detection at the property line and more than half require more than one complaint to 
trigger field investigation by enforcement (the City of Portland requires complaints from 10 different 
properties to trigger action).  Many jurisdictions have a regional air quality control board, environmental 
health division or other government agency for enforcement and reporting other than the central Code 
Enforcement officer staffed out of their Planning and Development office. 



 

 

 
III. DRAFT LANGUAGE - The attached draft establishes an odor threshold that allows for the minor 
odors that ANY property may occasionally emit, which allows for minor, barely detectible emissions.  It 
firmly connects with existing Code Enforcement practices so that all infractions are handled equally and 
consistently. This draft reflects a policy prohibiting egregious violations and assumes from the PB 
discussions that every complaint about an odor should not trigger an immediate commitment of staff 
time. Every complaint would be logged, and businesses that trigger at least three nuisance complaints 
within a week are assumed to be a problem odor that calls for investigation and action.  This would 
allow for transitory emissions that are not on-going and concentrated to pass, and those that are on-
going and strong would trigger multiple calls and therefore a site investigation. 
 
The draft calls for the use of field olfactory meters (see attached) to be used to establish the degree of 
violation and establish what is needed to bring a property into compliance.   
 
Auburn’s Code Enforcement language is designed to be adaptive to the unique circumstance of each 
violation and reflects: 

• degree of urgency (broken water pipe, oil spill- immediate life, health & safety),  

• immediate or long-term impact of the violation (decreased property values, infestations – 
potential number impacted & effect of violation),  

• the relative time and cost it may take to remedy the situation, and, 

• the efforts and responsiveness of the owners or managers in addressing the problem. 
 
Based on these factors Officers routinely work with businesses so that fines and penalties do not have to 
be assessed and properties can be brought into compliance.   It allows for the nature and extent of the 
problem to be determined so that appropriate actions and time frames can be established before 
penalties are issued.   This draft incorporates benchmarks to account for the possibility that a business 
may either be unable or unwilling to comply and provides an outside time limit for the offensive odors 
to continue before possibly being forced to shut down by removal of a business license or order of City 
Council (as is established by Chapter 14). 
     

    

IV. PLANNING BOARD ACTION- The Planning Board is being asked to make a recommendation to 

the City Council on the proposed text amendment.   

 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Audrey Knight, AICP 

City Planner  



 
  

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    July 15, 2019 
 
Author:  Peter Crichton, City Manager  
 

Subject: Joint Workshop Presentation on proposed Agriculture Committee Ordinance 
 
Information: This is the proposed Ag Committee Ordinance from the Working Group that was established to address the 
need for an ordinance to create the Ag Committee. Members of the Working Group were: Lucy Peck, Donald Peck, Mary 
Sylvester, Camille Parish, Councilor Holly Lasagna, Councilor David Young, staff Eric Cousens, staff Peter Crichton. The 
Ordinance addresses the purpose of the Agriculture Committee, the composition and qualifications of the committee 
members, powers and duties, Officers, meetings and records, the quorum required for a vote, and the appeals process.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: No fiscal impact.   
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Discuss the proposed ordinance.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Discussions that have been held previously by the Mayor’s Ag Task Force under former 
Mayor Jonathan Labonte and the most recent Mayor’s Ag Task Force under Mayor Jason Levesque. Two meetings were 
held by the Working Group on May 22 and June 6 to prepare the proposed ordinance.    
 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation.                                                                                          

                                                                                          Signature:    
 

Attachments:  

Proposed Ordinance 



Division 8. – Agriculture Committee 

 

Section 2-485.1 – Purpose 

 

The purpose of the Agricultural Committee shall be to proactively review city policies, practices, 

and ordinances to build a stronger food, agricultural, and resource economy in Auburn and  to 

address the ongoing needs of protecting farms, farmland, natural resources, forestry 

businesses, and woodlots.  

 

Section 2-485.2 – Committee established 

 

An Agriculture Advisory Committee is hereby established to consist of nine members appointed 

by the City Council, two thirds of whom shall be residents of the city with highest priority given to 

selecting 5 or more members who own land or are actively engaged in agriculture or forestry in 

the Agriculture and Resource Protection Zoning District. 

 

The terms of office shall be three years except that initial appointments after the date of 

adoption of the ordinance from which this division derives shall be such that the terms of no 

more than three members shall expire in any single year. For that purpose, the city council shall 

initially appoint three members for terms of one year, three members for terms of two years, and 

three members for terms of three years, such that the terms of approximately one-third of the 

members shall expire each year. Subsequent appointments shall be for a term of three years.   

 

Section 2-485.3 – Qualifications 

 

All members of the Committee shall be selected upon the basis of their involvement, skill or 

expertise in agriculture, forestry, wildlife protection or preservation, conservation of natural 

resources, food system economics, public policy or related fields. Two thirds of the members of 

the Committee shall be residents of the City.   

 

Section 2-485.4 – Powers and Duties 

 

The Committee shall:  

 

1. Make recommendations to the Planning Board and City Council and consult with 

the Conservation Commission regarding the ongoing needs of protecting farms, 

forestry businesses, farmland, woodlots and building a stronger food, agricultural 

and resource economy in Auburn.   

2. Adjudicate special permission consistent with its authority pursuant to Section 

60-145(a,1.,e) (NOTE to be deleted when reference is finalized: intended to 

reference residential use standards in AG zone, location TBD) consistent with the 

purpose set forth in Section 60-144 AGRP District Purpose); 

 

Commented [EC1]: Some repetition that we can clean 
up in this paragraph. 



3. Monitor trends in residential permitting activity within the Agriculture and 

Resource Protection Zoning District, promote enforcement of ordinances by city 

staff, and recommend changes to the City Council to protect the purposes of the 

District for agriculture, forestry and natural resources.  

4. Promote opportunities for farm financing and farm, forestry or natural resource 

business development proposals, conservation and preservation of agricultural 

lands and encourage the marketing of Auburn’s agricultural and forestry 

products;  

5. Seek to coordinate the activities of local, State and regional organizations of 

similar purposes and collaborate to assist with education of the community 

regarding food systems, agriculture and forestry;   

6. Research methods, best practices and successful policies that other 

communities are using to strengthen and support agriculture and forestry, and 

share information and ideas with community leaders.  

7. Periodically review the Auburn Comprehensive Plan and land use ordinances for 

provisions that relate to agriculture and forestry in order to identify potential 

barriers and opportunities to modify Auburn’s policies and ordinances to better 

support agriculture and forestry.  

8. Support broad public participation in changes to municipal policies and 

ordinances that affect agriculture and forestry and provide opportunities for public 

input as changes are proposed. 

9. Review applications for the Voluntary Municipal Farm Support Program and 

perform related duties as requested by the Auburn City Council.   

10. Keep records of its meetings and activities and make an annual report to the city 

council;  

11. Undertake any other agricultural or forestry related activity referred to it by the 

city council;  

12. Adopt by-laws to govern the internal affairs of the Committee including meeting 

frequency;  

13. May perform such other functions as are permitted by this Code.  

 

 

Section 2-485.5—Officers, meetings and records. 

 

1. The members shall elect from their membership a chairperson, a vice-chairperson 

and a secretary. Officers shall serve two-year terms. 

2. All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the public, and notice, shall be 

provided to the public about such meetings. 

3. The Committee may request that testimony provided during public hearings in front 

of the Committee be provided under oath. 

4. Minutes shall be kept of all meetings. 

 

Section 2-485.6 – Committees 

 



The Committee may vote to create subcommittees and appoint members of such 

subcommittees to work on specific projects. 

 

Section 2-485.7 – Quorum and necessary vote 

 

As to any matter requiring a public hearing, no business shall be transacted by the Committee 

without a quorum, consisting of at least half of the voting members of the committee.   If less 

than a quorum is present, the hearing shall be rescheduled, and the members and other 

interested parties shall be notified of the rescheduling.  

 

Section 2-485.8 — Appeals  

 

An appeal from any final decision of the Committee as to any matter over which it has final 

authority may be taken by any party to the Board of Appeals. (NOTE to be deleted when 

finalized: this needs more specificity and may apply only to quasi-judicial decisions, not 

recommendations.  Reference to any duties of the BOA will need to be added to the BOA 

ordinance sections if the BOA is deemed the appropriate body.  This would give someone that 

is dissatisfied with the decision of the Committee access to a Board that lacks agriculture and 

forestry expertise to overturn a decision.)LEGAL QUESTION 

 











 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  July 15, 2019     
 
Author:  Audrey Knight, City Planner 
 
Subject:  Implementation of an approved CIP item to increase Walkability in the Downtown. 
 
An Open House is scheduled for July 24th at the Auburn Library, from 3-6pm to discuss and review draft design 
and reconstruction drawings for the right-of-way’s of: Library Street, and the remaining portions of Spring 
Street, Pleasant Street, & Troy Street.   Draft right-of-way reconstruction drawings and staff will be on hand to 
take comments, concerns, ideas and answer questions, before construction drawings are produced.  A second 
meeting will be held in late August or early September with more final designs including landscaping.  
 
Information:  Portions of Spring and Pleasant Streets have been reconstructed and Troy Street is currently 
undergoing some reconstruction between Library and Hampshire streets.  This project would complete the 
much-needed reconstruction of the streets in this neighborhood to bring them up to Hampshire Street design 
standards.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  The design and construction drawings are funded by CDBG.  The reconstruction costs 
for all road segments can be estimated to reach up to one million with funding coming from the CPW, CIP, TIFF 
& CBDG.  At this time bids and construction are not planned until early 2020. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Information item.   

 
Previous Meetings and History:   In May 2018 the City Council approved the 2018 CDBG/HOME Action Plan 
included $135,000 for the reconstruction of Library Avenue Reconstruction as part of the Downtown 
Walkability Project.   
 
In February 2019, in order to avoid timeliness penalties from HUD, the Council approved an amendment to the 
Action Plan which reprogrammed $50,000 from the Library Ave project and put it towards the Senior 
Center.  It was noted that construction was not ready on Library Ave and design drawings were still 
needed.  The funds that remained in the Library Ave Project are now being used for the redesign of not only 
Library Avenue, but the remaining neighborhood street segments as well.  

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:         
 

Attachments: Proposed design (not complete yet) 





 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    July 15, 2019  Order:  80-07012019 
 
Author:  Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director and Phil Crowell, Assistant City Manager  
 

Subject:  Order – Authorizing General Obligation Bonds and a Tax Levy Therefor (NSBA). 
 
Information:  This is the order authorizing the Finance Director to issue General Obligation Bonds not to exceed 
$7,000,000, the sale proceeds of which, together with investment earnings, if any, are appropriated to finance the 
acquisition of Norway Savings Bank Arena (including costs of issuance and capitalized interest). 
 
This year we have seen additional growth to use of the arena. The addition of the two Thunder leagues and expanding 
the non-ice use is increasing the revenue projections.  
 
In FY19 we hired two former NHL employees to replace vacant positions – they bring tremendous value to the operation 
of the arena.   
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: FY 20 there will be an interest only payment in the Spring and the principle and interest 
payments for the next 20 years will be approximately $498,000 per year, which is slightly less than the current lease of 
$507,000 per year. The original lease had a 5-year interest accelerator which over the life of the 30-year term could have 
added 6% in additional interest charges.   
 
Since the arena opened its doors five years ago, the area immediately surrounding NSBA has had a 15.1-million-dollar 
growth (7.6 million in alterations to existing buildings and 7.5 million in new construction). A long-term corporate 
sponsor recently expressed how they have seen a significant increase in sales this year and contributes the growth to 
the events at Norway and as result will be increasing their sponsor amount.  
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends passage.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Workshop held on June 24, 2019, public hearing and passage of first reading (6-1) on 
July 1, 2019. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:             
 

Attachments:  

Order 80-07012019 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One  Leroy G. Walker, Sr. Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                         Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 

{W7290153.1}  

ORDER  80-07012019 
 

ORDER – AUTHORIZING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND A TAX LEVY THEREFOR   
 

Be It Ordered by the Auburn City Council, following a public hearing duly called and held as 

required by Article 8, Section 8.13 of the Auburn City Charter: 

 

THAT there be and hereby is authorized issuance of the City’s general obligation bonds, and notes 

in anticipation thereof, in the principal amount not to exceed $7,000,000, the sale proceeds of 

which, together with investment earnings, if any, are appropriated to finance the acquisition of 

Norway Savings Bank Arena (including costs of issuance and capitalized interest). 

 

Be It Further Ordered by the Auburn City Council: 
 

THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereunder shall be signed by the City’s Finance Director 

and its Treasurer, attested by the City Clerk under the seal of the City.  A tax levy is hereby 

provided for each fiscal year that the bonds authorized hereunder remain outstanding to meet the 

annual installments of principal and interest as may accrue in each respective year.  The bonds and 

notes may be issued at one time or from time to time, either singly or in series, and the authority 

and discretion to fix method of sale, issue date, maturities, denominations, interest rate, place of 

payment, form and other details of said bonds and notes, and to take all other actions and to sign 

and deliver all other documents, certificates and agreements in order to provide for the sale thereof 

is hereby delegated to the City’s Finance Director.  

  

THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereunder may be made subject to call for redemption, 

either with or without premium, on such terms as may be determined by the Finance Director.  

  

THAT the City’s Finance Director, Treasurer, Clerk, and other proper officials of the City be, and 

hereby are, authorized and empowered in its name and on its behalf to do or cause to be done all 

such acts and things, and to execute, deliver, file, approve, and record all financing documents, 

contracts, agreements, certificates, preliminary and final official statements, tax certificates and 

other documents as may be necessary or advisable, with the advice of counsel for the City, to carry 

out the provisions of this order and the issuance of the  bonds as may be necessary or desirable.  

  

THAT if the Finance Director, Treasurer, or Clerk are for any reason unavailable to approve and 

execute the bonds or any related financing documents, the person or persons then acting in any 

such capacity, whether as an assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official 

with the same force and effect as if such official had himself or herself performed such act.  

  

THAT this order is a declaration of official intent pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 and shall be 

kept available for public inspection during reasonable business hours at the office of the City Clerk.  



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One  Leroy G. Walker, Sr. Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                         Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 

{W7290153.1}  

 

A Public Notice describing the general purpose of the borrowing and the terms thereof and the 

times and places where copies of the bond proposal were available for inspection by the public 

was published on or before June 17, 2019, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper 

published in the City of Auburn and in Androscoggin County.    

  

A public hearing was held on July 1, 2019.    

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 15, 2019  Order: 85-07152019 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk  
 

Subject:  Cancellation of the first Regular City Council Meeting in August 
 
Information:  The City Council is scheduled to meet on August 5, 2019 and August 19, 2019 (for the month of August).  

Due to vacations and summer schedules, there has been discussion to cancel the first meeting of August.   

 
 

City Budgetary Impacts:  None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Consider cancelling the first meeting in August (August 5, 2019). 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Council meets regularly on the first and third Monday of each month.  
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:             
 

Attachments:  
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER  85-07152019 
 

 
ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby cancels the first City Council meeting of August 
scheduled for August 5, 2019. The next regular City Council meeting will be held on Monday, August 
19, 2019.  

  



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 15, 2019  Order: 86-07152019  
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Election of Androscoggin County Budget Committee Members 
 
Information:  The County Commissioners held a caucus on June 19, 2019 for the purpose of nominating two residents of 

Auburn’s Commissioner district for the County Budget Committee. These are 3-year terms for budget years 2020, 2021, 

2022. At least one of the candidates must be a municipal official as defined in 30-A MRSA Sec. 722(2). Nominations were 

accepted and Municipal Officers must vote as a Board and return the ballot to the County Commissioners. 

Nominations were accepted for: 

Andy Titus, Councilor 

Phil Crowell, Resident 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This election is every three years. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:                 
 

Attachments:  
Memo from County Commissioners 
Order 86-07152019 
 
 







Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 86-07152019 
 
 

ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby casts their votes for the following individuals to serve 
on the Androscoggin County Budget Committee; 
 
District 5  (Auburn) 
 
1. ___________________________ (write-in) 
 
2. ____________________________(write-in) 
 
 
District 6  (Auburn, Poland, Mechanic Falls) 
 
1. Andrew Titus, Councilor  
 
2. Phillip Crowell, Resident  

 
 
  



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date: July 15, 2019  Ordinance: 10-07152019 
 
Author:  Megan McLaughlin, City Planner II 
 

Subject:  Non-Reflectorized Official Business Directional Signage (OBDS) in the City 
 
Information:  We received four applications for Official Business Directional Signs (OBDS) in the city from the Hilton 
Garden Inn. The four applications consisted of requests for one non-reflectorized and three reflectorized signs. The City 
ordinance only permits non-reflectorized signs: Chapter 42, Article II, Division 2: “…Signs shall be non-
reflectorized…except that a reflectorized sign of any permissible size may be permitted on an existing sign assembly 
displaying a reflectorized sign of the same size if such sign assembly was legally erected prior to October 7, 1985.” 
 
As of October 1, 2014, non-reflective OBDS located on National Highway System (NHS) designated highways that are in 
need of replacement must be replaced by reflective OBDS. In addition, as of January 1, 2020, the MDOT will require all 
OBDS erected on State Highways or State-Aid Highways to be retroreflective. Applications for non-reflectorized OBDS 
will no longer be accepted (See 23 M.R.S.A § 1925, as amended by P.L. 2013 Ch. 529; 23 M.R.S.A  § 52). Existing signs will  
be/are “grandfathered.” The term “retroreflective” refers to the ability of signs to return light from a vehicles head lights 
back toward the vehicle, thereby making the signs “illuminate” at night so that the vehicle operator can easily see/read 
them. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None.     

 
Staff Recommended Action: With the language in the ordinance currently, reflective OBDS are not permitted in the City 
unless they are installed on a sign assembly that was legally erected prior to October 7, 1985. Planning Staff 
recommends the City Council consider the following questions: 

• Should Chapter 42 of the City Ordinance be amended to allow retroreflective OBDS in accordance with the MDOT 
changes? 

• The ordinance includes a list of locations OBDS are permitted. If a location is not on the list, a sign is not 
permitted there. This list has been mapped and Staff believes it is not all inclusive. For example, there are sign 
assemblies that are not on the list. The list also includes permitted locations where a sign assembly may no 
longer exist, or the street names have changed. Should the City consider trying to make this list all-inclusive or 
remove the list from the ordinance and allow OBDS at intersections on all State, State Aid and Federal Highways? 

• There is one additional cleanup item in the ordinance that Staff recommends be addressed should the Council 
decide to amend other sections of the OBDS ordinance. For example, the ordinance references Chapter 200 
when it should be Chapter 205 of the State Department of Transportation Administrative Guidelines.  

 
 

Previous Meetings and History: 7/1/2019 workshop 
 

City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:              
 

Attachments: I: Ordinance Reference; II: Maine DOT Chapter 205 



































































Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 ORDINANCE 10-07152019 

 
TITLE: Adopting the proposed amendment to Chapter 42, Sections 42-44 Location and 42-45 
Design, Installation and Maintenance  

 
Be it ordained, that the Auburn City Council hereby adopts the proposed amendment to 
Chapter 42, Sections 42-44 Location and 42-45 Design, Installation and Maintenance (as 
attached).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 
ORDINANCE: 

DIVISION 2. - DIRECTIONAL SIGNS 

Sec. 42-40. - Purpose and policy. 

The purpose of this division is to provide tourists and travelers with information and guidance 
concerning public accommodations, facilities, commercial services, and other businesses and 
points of scenic, cultural, historic, educational, recreational, agricultural, and religious 
interest. To provide this information and guidance, it is the policy of the city: 

(1) To establish and maintain a system of official business directional signs; 

(2) To prohibit and control the proliferation of roadside signs; and 

(3) To provide a uniform procedure and criteria to govern their location and approval 
consistent with state laws governing official business directional signs. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.1) 

Sec. 42-41. - Definitions. 

Unless another meaning is given expressly or by clear implication, all terms used in this 
division shall have the meanings set forth in 23M.R.S.A. § 1903. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.2) 

Sec. 42-42. - Applicability. 

The provisions of this division shall apply only to official business directional signs. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.7) 

Sec. 42-43. - Eligibility. 

Lawful businesses and points of interest and cultural, historic, recreational, educational, 
and religious facilities are eligible to contract with the state for the placement of up to six 
official business directional signs within the city, but only at the intersections or locations 
listed in section 42-44. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.3) 

State Law reference— Similar provision, 23 M.R.S.A. § 1909. 



 
 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Sec. 42-44. - Location. 

Official business directional signs shall be located in accordance with the provisions 
contained in 23 M.R.S.A. §§ 1911 and 1912 and chapter 200 205 of the state department of 
transportation administrative guidelines on approaches to or at the following intersections 
designated by the city council all State, State Aid and Federal Highway intersections. 

(1) Turnpike Connector/Lewiston Junction Road. 
(2) Turnpike Connector/Washington Street. 
(3) Turkey Lane/Washington Street. 
(4) Route 122/Hotel Road. 
(5) Beech Hill Road/Washington Street. 
(6) Old Danville Road/Danville Corner Road. 
(7) Merrow Road/Hotel Road. 
(8) Turnpike Connector/Hotel Road. 
(9) Rodman Road/Washington Street. 
(10) Rodman Road/Poland Road. 
(11) Rodman Road/Manley Road. 
(12) Rodman Road/Hotel Road. 
(13) Hotel Road/Minot Avenue. 
(14) Upper Court Street/Minot Avenue. 
(15) Fairview Avenue/Minot Avenue. 
(16) Rotary. 
(17) High Street/Minot Avenue. 
(18) Broad Street/Mill Street. 
(19) Riverside Drive/Mill Street. 
(20) Court Street/Union Street Bypass. 
(21) Court Street/Goff Street. 
(22) Court Street/Western Avenue 
(23) Court Street/Turner Street. 
(24) Turner Street/Union Street Bypass. 
(25) Center Street/North River Road. 
(26) Park Avenue/Mt. Auburn Avenue. 
(27) Gracelawn Road/Mt. Auburn Avenue. 
(28) Center Street/Mt. Auburn Avenue. 
(29) Youngs Corner Road/Hotel Road. 
(30) Youngs Corner Road/Perkins Ridge Road. 
(31) Lake Shore Drive/Route 4. 
(32) West Hardscrabble Road/Lewiston Junction Road. 
(33) Minot Avenue/Hatch Road (northerly direction only). 
(34) High Street/Academy Street. 
(35) Main Street/Academy Street. 
(36) South Main Street/Mill Street. 
(37) Lake Shore Drive/North Auburn Road. 



 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

(38) Center Street/Fair Street, Martin Street. 
(39) Washington Street southbound Miami Avenue. 
(40) Washington Street northbound Miami Avenue. 
(41) Washington Street southbound Phil-O-Mar Street. 
(42) Washington Street northbound Phil-O-Mar Street. 
(43) Washington Street northbound Chasse Street. 
(44) Washington Street southbound Chasse Street. 
(45) Washington Street northbound Hackett Road. 
(46) Park Avenue/Gamage Avenue. 
(47) Perkins Ridge Road/Hatch Road (Welcomb's Corner). 
(48) Center Street/Stetson Road. 
(49) Fair Street/Oak Hill Road. 
(50) Hotel Road/Manley Road. 
(51) Summer Street/Youngs Corner Road. 
(52) Riverside Drive/Penley Corner Road. 
(53) Rodman Road/Twin Road. 
(54) Washington Street northbound Adams Street. 
(55) First Ave/Rotary Reverse Direction Connectors. 
(56) Hackett Road/Broad Street. 
(57) Center Street/Stanley Street. 
(58) Center Street/Cross Street. 
(59) Riverside Drive/Dunn Street. 
(60) Turner Street/Gracelawn Road. 
(61) Drummond Street/Main Street. 
(62) Court Street/Pleasant Street (both directions). 
(63) Minot Avenue/Elm Street. 
(64) Pleasant Street/Elm Street. 
(65) Millett Drive/Court Street. 
(66) Minot Avenue/Millett Drive. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.4; Ord. of 3-2-1998; Ord. of 12-6-1999(2); Ord. of 11-19-2001(2); Ord. of 
5-2-2005(02); Ord. No. 05-07162012, 8-6-2012) 

State Law reference— Permitted locations, 3 M.R.S.A. § 1912. 

Sec. 42-45. - Design, installation and maintenance. 

Official business directional signs shall be designed, installed and maintained in 
accordance with the provisions of 23 M.R.S.A. §§ 1901 through 1925 and chapter 200 205 of 
the state department of transportation administrative guidelines. Signs shall be 
nonreflectorized and no larger than 12 by 48 inches, except that a reflectorized sign of any 
permissible size may be permitted on an existing sign assembly displaying a reflectorized sign 
of the same size if such sign assembly was legally erected prior to October 7, 1985. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.5) 



 
 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Sec. 42-46. - Application. 

Application for an official business directional sign shall be made on forms furnished 
by the state department of transportation. Completed applications shall be submitted to the 
department of planning and permitting services for review. Upon receipt of the completed 
application, the department shall review the request to ensure that it conforms to the 
provisions of this article and shall approve, conditionally approve or reject the request based 
on its findings. If disapproved by the department, the reasons for disapproval shall be 
communicated to the applicant in writing. Any person aggrieved by the decision of the 
department may appeal to the county superior court within 30 days of receipt of the 
department's decision. If approved, the applicant may then forward the approved application 
and the license fee prescribed by the state law to the state commissioner of transportation 
for approval or disapproval. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.6) 

State Law reference— Applications for state licensing, 23 M.R.S.A. § 1918. 

Sec. 42-47. - Penalty. 

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this article shall be guilty of a civil  
infraction, and shall be subject to a fine of $100.00 to be paid to the city for each such 
offense. Each day that such violation is permitted to continue after notification by the 
department of planning and permitting services shall constitute a separate offense. 

(Code 1967, § 27-5.8) 

Secs. 42-48—42-67. - Reserved. 



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 15, 2019 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Contract negotiations (Fire), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (D). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   July 15, 2019 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Contract negotiations (MSEA), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (D). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 7-15-2019
	1  Info Sheet for Joint Workshop City Council - Planning Board 7-11-19
	2  Info Sheet -odors7_15_19
	2a  MJ Odors ARTICLE_XIII.___ENVIRONMENTAL_PERFORMANCE_STANDARDS 7_19PBPH
	2b  nasalRanger
	2c  PBPHOdor7_9_19
	3  Info Sheet for proposed Ag Committee Ordinance 7-11-19
	3a  AgricultureAdvisoryCommittee7.10.19V6
	4  Minutes 7-1-2019
	4a  Info Sheet -Library Street
	4b  LibraryStreetPosterette72419
	5  info sheet NSBA bonds
	5a  Order 80-07012019 Auburn Norway Savings Bank Bonds
	6  Info Sheet - to Cancel the First August Meeting
	6a  Order 85-07152019 CANC AUG 5 MTG
	7  Info Sheet - County Budget
	7a  Municipal Officers - Caucus Budget Committee Members
	7b  Order 86-07152019 County Budget
	8  Info sheet_OBDS_070119x
	8a  ATTACHMENT_I
	8b  ATTACHMENT_II
	8c  Ordinance 10-07152019 Amendment_OBDS_071519_FirstReading
	9  Executive Session Contract Neg FIRE
	10  Executive Session Contract Neg MSEA

